DOCKET NO.			TV OF THE PARTY OF		
1000000	277				

DOCKETNO

OO In the Matter of In Section 1997 IN THE MATTER OF THE FILING BY U S WEST COMMUNICATIONS, INC. FOR APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT FOR SERVICE RESALE BETWEEN COMM SOUTH COMPANIES, INC. AND U S WEST COMMUNICATIONS, INC.

Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota MEMORANDA 5/15 98 Filed and Richetel; Requesting Hithdrawal; aggreding statesawal of Regatiated agreement and Cleany Redit,

U S WEST, Inc. 1801 California Street, Suite 5100 Denver, Colorado 80202 303 672-2832 Facsimile 303 295-7069

Karen E. Titzer

UNWEST

May 12, 1998

Via Federal Express

RECEIVED

MAY 15 1998 SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Mr. William Bullard, Jr. Executive Director South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 500 East Capital Avenue

Pierre, SD 57501

Re: Filing of Agreement for Service Resale between U S WEST Communications, Inc. and Comm South Companies, Inc.

Dear Mr. Bullard:

Enclosed for filing and Commission approval is the original and eight copies of the negotiated Agreement for Service Resale between U S WEST and Comm South Companies Companies, Inc.

Please date stamp the enclosed copy of this letter and return it in the selfaddressed stamped envelope also enclosed. Thank you for your cooperation.

Very truly yours.

Karen Titze Paralegal

/kt Enclosures cc: Service List ce: Comm South Companies, Inc. Jim H. Graham 6830 Walling Lane Dallas, TX 75231

> U S WEST Communications, Inc. Director Interconnection Services 1801 California Street, Room 2420 Denver, CO 80202

Ms. Colleen Sevold Manager - Public Policy USWC - Public Policy 125 S. Dakota Avenue, Room 8 Floor Sioux Falls, SD 57194

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICE RESALE Between

Comm South Companies, Inc. and U S WEST Communications, Inc.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TC98-100

MAY 15 1998

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

	Page
I. RECITALS & PRINCIPLES	3
II. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	3
III. DEFINITIONS	4
IV. RESALE SERVICES	5
A. Description	5
B. Scope	5
C. Ordering and Maintenance	5
D. Reseller Responsibilities	8
E. Rates and Charges	8
F. Collateral and Training	10
V. ACCESS TO OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEMS (OSS)	11
VI. DIRECTORY LISTINGS	11
VII. GENERAL PROVISIONS	11
A. Term	11
B. Billing	11
C. Payment	11
D. Deposit	13
E. Taxes	13
F. Force Majeure	13
G. Responsibility of Each Party	14

1		
1		
1		
:		
1		

H. Limitation of Liability	1.
I. Indemnification	1.
J. Intellectual Property	1!
K. Warranties	1
L. Assignment	1
M. Default	11
N. Severability	100
O. Nondisclosure	11
P. Survival	11
Q. Dispute Resolution	11
R. Controlling Law	11
S. Joint Work Product	- 11
T. Notices	20
U. No Third Party Beneficiaries	20
V. Publicity and Advertising	20
W. Amendments or Waivers	20
X. Executed in Counterparts	20
Y. Headings of No force or Effect	20
Z. Cooperation	20
AA Entire Agreement	21

AGREEMENT FOR SERVICE RESALE

This is an Agreement for Service Resale ("Agreement"), between Comm South Companies. Inc ("Reseller"), a Certified Reseller, and U.S. WEST Communications. Inc. ("USWC") (collectively, "The Parties") in which USWC will provide certain services to Reseller within the state of South Dakota. Where required, this Agreement or the portions of this Agreement relative to a particular state, will be submitted to the appropriate Public Utilities Commission ("Commission") and the Parties will specifically request that the Commission promptly approve this Agreement and refrain from taking any action to change, suspend or otherwise delay implementation of this Agreement. The Parties enter into this Agreement without prejudice to any positions they have taken previously, or may take in the future in any legislative, regulatory, or other public forum addressing any matters, including matters related to the types of arrangements prescribed by this Agreement.

The Parties agree and understand that USWC is proposing certain provisions in this Agreement based in large part, on the FCC's First Report and Order, in the Matter of Implementing of the Local Competition Provisions in the Telecommunications Act of 1996. CC Docket No. 96-98, rel. Aug. 8, 1996 ("FCC 1" Order") and the Second Report and Order and Memorandum Opinion and Order. In the Matter of Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996. CC Docket No. 96-98 rel. Aug. 8, 1996 ("FCC 2" Order"). To the extent that certain of the rules contained in the FCC 1" Order and the FCC 2" Order are deemed by the courts to be not effective, this Agreement shall be modified to comport with the final court decisions and subsequent FCC or state Commission decisions or rules issued to comply with the courts' decisions.

I. RECITALS & PRINCIPLES

WHEREAS, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the "Act") was signed into law on February 8, 1996, and

WHEREAS, the Act places certain duties and obligations upon, and grants certain rights to, Telecommunications Carriers, and

WHEREAS, USWC is an Incumbent Local Exchange Carrier or has a majority ownership interest in local exchange companies which are Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers, and

WHEREAS, the Telecommunications Act of 1996 has specific requirements for service resale, commonly referred to as a part of the "checklist" and USWC desires that this Agreement meet those checklist requirements and

WHEREAS, USWC, for itself and its Affiliates, is willing to sell services for resale, on the terms and subject to the conditions of this Agreement, and

WHEREAS. Reseller is a Telecommunications Carrier and has requested that USWC negotiate an Agreement with Reseller for the provision of USWC services for resale pursuant to the Act and in conformance with USWC's duties under the Act, and

WHEREAS, the Parties have arrived at this Agreement through voluntary negotiations undertaken pursuant to the Act

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual provisions contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged. Reseller and USWC hereby covenant anii agree as follows:

II. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

A. This Agreement sets forth the terms, conditions and prices under which USWC agrees to provide telecommunications services for resale. Unless otherwise

provided in this Agreement, USWC will perform all of its obligations hereunder to the extent provided in the Appendices attached hereto. The Agreement includes all accompanying appendices

- B in the performance of their "biligations under this Agreement, the Parties shall act in good faith and consistently with the intent of the Act. Where notice, approval or similar action by a Party is permitted or required by any provision of this Agreement, the Act. FCC 1" and 2" Orders, or a state Commission, (including, without limitation, the obligation of the Parties to further negotiate the resolution of new or open issues under this Agreement) such action shall not be unreasonably delayed, withheld or conditioned.
- C. The Parties have agreed to certain provisions in this Agreement, based, in large part, on the existing state of the law, rules, regulations and interpretations thereof, as of the date hereof (the "Existing Rules"). To the extent that certain of the Existing Rules are changed and modified, and it reasonably appears that the Parties would have negotiated and agreed to different term(s), conditions(s), or covenant(s) than as contained herein had such change or modification been in existence before execution hereof, then this Agreement shall be amended to reflect such different term(s), condition(s), or covenant(s). Where the Parties fail to agree upon such an amenoment, it shall be resolved in accordance with the Dispute Resolution provision of this Agreement.

III. DEFINITIONS

- A. "Basic Exchange Telecommunications Service" means a service offered to end users which provides the end user with a telephonic connection to, and a unique local telephone number address on, the public switched telecommunications network, and which enables such end user to generally place calls to, or receive calls from, other stations on the public switched telecommunications network. Basic residence and business line services are Basic Exchange Telecommunication Services. As used solely in the context of this Agreement and unless otherwise agreed. Basic Exchange Telecommunication Services includes access to ancillary services such as 911, directory assistance and operator services.
- B "Basic Exchange Switched Features" are optional end user switched service features which include, but are not necessarily limited to: Automatic Call Back; Call Trace, Caller ID and Related Blocking Features; Distinctive Ringing/Call Waiting, Selective Call Forward, Selective Call Rejection.
- C. "Commission" means the Public Utilities Commission in the state of South Dakota
- D. "Enhanced Services" means any service offered over common carrier transmission facilities that employ computer processing applications that act on format, content, code, protocol or similar aspects of the subscriber's transmitted information, that provide the subscriber with additional, different or restructured information, or involve end user interaction with stored information.
- E. "Reseller" is a category of Local Exchange service providers that are certified to obtain dial tone and associated telecommunications services from another provider through the purchase of bundled finished services for resale to its end user.

- "Tariff" as used throughout this Agreement refers to USWC state tariffs, price lists, price schedules and catalogs
- G "Telecommunications Carrier" means any provider of telecommunications services, except that such term does not include aggregators of telecommunications services (as defined in Section 226 of the Act). A Telecommunications Carrier shall be treated as a common carrier under the Act only to the extent that it is engaged in providing telecommunications services, except that the Commission shall determine whether the provision of fixed and mobile satellite service shall be treated as common carriace.

IV. RESALE SERVICES

A Description

- USWC services (as defined in Section III A and B) and intraLATA toll originating from USWC exchanges (hereinafter "intraLATA toll") will be available for resale by USWC pursuant to the Act and will reference terms and conditions (except prices) in USWC tariffs, where applicable Appendix A lists services which are available for resale under this Agreement and the applicable discounts, and is attached and incorporated herein by this reference.
- The Parties agree that, at this time, certain USWC services are not available for resale under this Agreement, and certain other USWC services are available for resale but at no discount, as identified in Appendix A or in individual state tariffs. The availability of services and applicable discounts identified in Appendix A or in individual tariffs are subject to change pursuant to Section IV E 1.

B Scope

- 1 Basic Exchange Telecommunications Service, Basic Exchange Switched Features and IntraLATA foil may be resold only for their intended or disclosed use and only to the same class of end user to whom USWC sells such services: e.g., residence service may not be resold to business end users.
- 2. USWC shall provide to Reseller services for resale that are equal in quality, subject to the same conditions (including the conditions in USWC's effective tariffs), within provisioning time intervals that are substantially equal to the intervals USWC provides these services to others, including end users, and in accordance with any applicable state Commission service quality standards, including standards a state Commission may impose pursuant to Section 252 (e)(3) of the AC.

Ordering and Maintenance.

1. Reseller or Reseller's agent shall act as the single point of contact for its end users' service needs, including without limitation, sales, service design, order taking, provisioning, change orders training, maintenance, trouble reports, repair, post-sale servicing, billing, collection and inquiry. Reseller shall make it clear to its end users that they are end users of the Reseller for resold services. Reseller's end users contacting USWC will be instructed to contact the Reseller, however, nothing in this Agreement, except as provided in Section IV C7 (e) shall be deemed to prohibit USWC.

Reseller shall transmit to USWC all information necessary for the installation (billing, listing and other information), repair, maintenance and post-installation servicing according to USWCs standard procedures, as described in the USWC resale operations guide that will be provided to Reseller.

When USWC's end user or the end user's new service provider discontinues the end user's service in anticipation of moving to another service provider USWC will render its closing bill to end user effective with the disconnection. If USWC is not the local service provider USWC will issue a bill to Reseller for that portion of the service provided to the Reseller should Reseller's end user, a new service provider, or Reseller request service be discontinued to the end user. USWC will notify Reseller by FAX, OSS, or other processes when end user moves to another service provider. USWC will not provide Reseller with the name of the other reseller or service provider selected by the end user.

The Parties agree that they will not transfer their respective end users whose accounts are in arrears between each other. The Parties further agree that they will work cooperatively together to develop the standards and processes applicable to the transfer of such accounts.

- Reseller shall provide USWC and USWC shall provide Reseller with points of contact for order entry, problem resolution and repair of the resold services.
- 4 Prior to placing orders on behalf of the end user, Reseller shall be responsible for obtaining and have in its possession Proof of Authorization ("POA"). POA shall consist of documentation acceptable to USWC of the end user's selection of Reseller. Such selection may be obtained in the following ways:
 - a. The end user's written Letter of Authorization or LOA
 - b. The end user's electronic authorization by use of an 800 number.
 - The end user's oral authorization verified by an independent third party (with third party verification as POA)
 - d. A prepaid returnable postcard supplied by Reseller which has been signed and returned by end user. Reseller will wait fourteen (14) days after mailing the postcard before placing an order to change.

Reseller shall make POAs available to USWC upon request. Prior to placing orders that will disconnect a line from another reseller's account the Reseller is responsible for obtaining all information needed to process the disconnect order and re-establish the service on behalf of the end user. Should an end user dispute or a discrepancy arise regarding the authority of Reseller to act on behalf of the end user. the Reseller is responsible for providing written evidence of its authority to USWC within three (a) business days if there is a conflict between the end user designation and Reseller's written evidence of its authority. USWC shall honor the designation of the end user and change the end user back to the previous service provider. If the Reseller does not provide the POA within three (3)

business days, or if the end user disputes the authority of the POA, then the Reseller must, by the end of the third business day:

- notify USWC to change the end user back to the previous reseller or service provider, and
- provide any end user information and billing records the Reseller has obtained relating to the end user to the previous reseller, and
- notify the end user and USWC that the change has been made.
- remit to USWC a charge of \$100.00 ("slamming charge") as compensation for the change back to the previous reseller or service provider.

If an end user is switched from Reseller back to USWC and there is a dispute or discrepancy with respect to such change in service provider. Reseller may request to see a copy of the POA which USWC has obtained from the end user to effectuate a return to USWC as the end user's service provider. If USWC is unable to produce a POA within three (3) business days. USWC shall change the end user back to Reseller (or other previous reseller) without imposition of any Customer Transfer Charge.

- 5 Reseller shall designate Primary Interexchange Carrier (PIC) assignments on behalf of its end-users for interLATA services and intraLATA services when intraLATA presubscription is implemented.
- 6. When end users switch from USWC to Reseller, or to Reseller from any other reseller, such end users shall be permitted to retain their current telephone numbers if they so desire and do not change their service address to an address served by a different central office. USWC shall take no action to prevent Reseller end users from retaining their current telephone numbers.
- Reseller and USWC will employ the following procedures for handling misdirected repair calls:
 - Reseller and USWC will provide their respective end users with the correct telephone numbers to call for access to their respective repair bureaus
 - End users of Reseller shall be instructed to report all cases of trouble to Reseller. End users of USWC shall be instructed to report all cases of trouble to USWC.
 - To the extent the correct provider can be determined, misdirected repair calls will be referred to the proper provider of Basic Exchange Telecommunications Service
 - d Reseller and USWC will provide their respective repair contact numbers to one another on a reciprocal basis.
 - e. In responding to repair calls, neither Party shall make disparaging remarks about each other, no shall they use these repair calls as the basis for internal referrals or to solicit end users to market services. Either Party may respond with accurate information in answering end user questions.

D. Reseller Responsibilities.

- 1 Reseller must send USWC complete and accurate end-user listing information for directory assistance, directory listings, and 911 Emergency Services using USWC's resaile order form_and process. Reseller must provide to USWC accurate end-user information to ensure appropriate listings in any databases in which USWC is required to retain and/or maintain end-user information. USWC assumes no liability for the accuracy of information provided by Reseller.
- Reseller may not reserve blocks of USWC telephone numbers, except as allowed by tariffs.
- Reseller is liable for all fraud associated with service to its end-users and accounts. USWC takes no responsibility, will not investigate, and will make no adjustments to Reseller's account in cases of fraud unless such fraud is the result of any intentional act or gross negligence of USWC. Notwithstanding the above, if USWC becomes aware of potential fraud with respect to Reseller's accounts. USWC will promptly inform Reseller and at the direction of Reseller, take reasonable action to mitigate the fraud where such action is possible. USWC will also be liable for charges incurred by Reseller as a result of USWC is failure to effect a Reseller order requesting blocking of services such as 900 numbers, "65 dialing, and services ordered on a per activation basis."
- 4. Reseller will indicate the date it will offer to residential and business subscribers telephone exchange services. The Reseller will provide a two year forecast within ninety (90) days of signing this Agreement. During the first year of the term of this Agreement, the forecast shall be updated and provided to USWC on a quarterly basis. Thereafter, during the term of this Agreement. Reseller will provide updated forecasts from time to time, as requested by USWC. The initial forecast will provide.
 - . The date service will be offered (by city and/or state)
 - The type and quantity of service(s) which will be offered.
 - Reseller's anticipated order volume
 - Reseller's key contact personnel

The information provided pursuant to this paragraph shall be considered Proprietary Information under Section VII. O. of this Agreement.

5 In the event USWC terminates the provisioning of any resold services to Reseller for any reason. Reseller shall be responsible for providing any and all necessary notice to its end users of the termination. In no case shall USWC be responsible for providing notice to Reseller's end users. USWC will provide notice to Reseller of its termination of a resold service on a timely basis consistent with Commission rules and notice requirements.

E. Rates and Charges

1 Resold services as listed in Appendix A are available for resale at the applicable discount percentage or rate per minute set forth in Appendix A or at the retail tariff rates for services available for resale but excluded from the wholesale pricing arrangement in this Agreement.

However, state Commissions may do any of the following (collectively referred to hereinafter as "Order") during the term of this Agreement:

- establish wholesale discount rates through decisions in arbitration, interconnection and/or resale cost proceedings;
- establish other recurring and nonrecurring rates related to resale, including but not limited to Customer Transfer Charges and Slamming Charges ("Other Resale Charges"); and
 - order that certain services be made available for resale at specified wholesale discount rates

If a state Commission orders services to be available for resale the Parties agree that they will, on a state-by-state basis, revise Appendix A to incorporate the services determined by such Order into this Agreement, effective on the date ordered by a Commission. When a state Commission, through a decision in antistration, identifies services that must be available for resale at wholesale discount rates, such decision shall be deemed to have defined that such services are generally available to resellers in that state. If a state Commission establishes wholesale discount rates and Other Resale Charges to be made generally available to resellers or establishes a resale tariff, the Parties agree that they will, on a state-by-state basis; revise Appendix A to incorporate such wholesale discount rates and/or Other Resale Charges into this Agreement effective on the date ordered by a Commission, provided, however, that USWO shall have a reasonable time to implement system or other changes necessary to bill the Commission ordered rates or charges.

The rates for those resold services initially included in the wholesale pricing arrangement under this Agreement shall be subject to true-up to the wholesale discount rates established by a Commission Order making such rates generally available to resellers or established by a resale tariff, retroactively to the effective date of this Agreement. Any true-up shall be on a service-by-service basis if wholesale discount rates are established by a Commission on such a basis.

Services excluded from the wholesale pricing arrangement under this Agreement as identified in Appendix A shall be made available on a going forward basis from the date of a Commission Order that orders such services be made generally available to any reseller in the state where such a Commission Order is issued. Such services shall be available at the discount rate applicable to basic exchange business and residence services identified in Section 2 of Appendix A, provided. nowever, that when a Commission order establishes wholesale discount rates for such services as generally available to resellers. Appendix A shall be revised to incorporate the wholesale discount rates generally available to resellers.

If a state Commission fails to issue such an Order or make effective such a tariff by the end of the first year of this Agreement, either USWC or Reseller may elect to renegotiate this Section of the Agreement.

 If the resold services are purchased pursuant to Tariffs and the Tariff rates change, charges billied to Reseller for such services will be based upon the new Tariff rates less the applicable wholesale discount as agreed to herein or established by resale Tariff. The new rate will be effective upon the Tariff effective date.

- A Customer Transfer Charge (CTC) as specified in Appendix A applies when transferring any existing account or lines to a Reseller. Tariffed nonrecurring charges will apply to new installations.
- 4. A Subscriber Line Charge (SLC) will continue to be paid by the Reseller without discount to USWC for each local exchange line resold under this Agreement. All federal and state rules and regulations associated with SLC as found in the applicable tariffs also apply.
- Reseller will pay to USWC the PIC change charge without discount associated with Reseller end user changes of inter-exchange or intraLATA carriers
- Reseller agrees to pay USWC when its end user activates any services or features that are billed on a per use or per activation basis subject to the applicable discount in Appendix A as such may be amended pursuant to Section IV E 1 (e.g., continuous redial, last call return, call back calling, call trace etc.)
- 7 Resold services are available only where facilities currently exist and are capable of providing such services without construction of additional facilities or enhancement of existing facilities. However, if Reseller requests that facilities be constructed or enhanced to provide resold services. USWC will review such requests on a case-by-case basis and determine, in its sole discretion, if it is economically feasible for USWC to build or enhance facilities. If USWC decides to build or enhance the requested facilities, USWC will develop and provide to Reseller a price quote for the construction. If the quote is accepted, Reseller will be billed the quote price and construction will commence after receipt of payment.
- 8. Nonrecurring charges will not be discounted and will be billed at the applicable Tariff rates.
- 9 As part of the resold line. USWC provides and Reseller accepts at this time, operator services, directory assistance, and intraLATA long distance with standard USWC branding. Reseller is not permitted to after the branding of these services in any manner when the services are a part of the resold line without the prior written approval of USWC. However, at the request of Reseller and where technically feasible. USWC will rebrand operator services and directory assistance in the Reseller's name, provided the costs associated with such retranding are paid by Reseller.

F. Collateral and Training

The Parties will jointly develop procedures regarding Reseller's use of USWC's retail product training materials. Except for any rights granted by USWC to Reseller for the use or copying of product training provided under this Agreement shall be considered "Proprietary Information" as described in Section VII. O., and shall be subject to the terms and conditions specified therein.

V. ACCESS TO OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEMS (OSS)

Access to OSS is described in Appendix C to this Agreement, which Appendix is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

VI. DIRECTORY LISTING.

USWC will accept at no charge one primary listing for each main telephone number belonging to Reseller's end user based on end user information provided to USWC by Reseller. USWC will place Reseller's listings in USWC's directory listing database for directory assistance purposes and will make listings available to directory publishers and other third parties. Additional terms and conditions with respect to directory listings are described in Appendix B which by this reference is incorporated and made a part of this Agreement.

VII. GENERAL PROVISIONS

A Term

This Agreement shall become effective upon Commission approval, pursuant to Sections 251 and 252 of the Act. and shall terminate on July 1, 2000, and shall be binding upon the Parties during that term, notwithstanding Section 252(i) of the Act. The Parties agree to commence negotiations on a new agreement no later than 135 calendar days prior to the termination date specified above, provided that Reseller, consistent with Section 252(i) of the Act, may opt into a then-existing, valid interconnection or resale agreement, in its entirety, at the conclusion of the said term of this Agreement. In the event that negotiations are not concluded as of the termination date specified above, the window of opportunity to file for arbitration to resolve outstanding contractual issues in accordance with the Act will open upon the termination date specified above.

B Billing

- USWC shall bill Reseller and Reseller is responsible for all applicable charges for the resold services as provided herein. The Reseller shall also be responsible for all tariffed charges and charges separately identified in this Agreement associated with services that the Reseller resells to an end user under this Agreement.
- 2. USWC shall provide Reseller, on a monthly basis, within 7-10 days of the last day of the most recent billing period, in an agreed upon standard electronic billing format, billing information including (1) a summary bill, and (2) individual end user sub-account information consistent with the samples provided to Reseller for Reseller to render end user bills indicating all recurring and nonrecurring charges associated with each individual end user's account for the most recent billing period.

C. Payment.

Amounts payable under this Agreement are due and payable within thirty (30) days after the rill date of USWC's invoice. During the initial three billing cycles of this Agreement. Reseiler and USWC agree that undisputed amounts shall be paid as provided herein. Reseiler and USWC further agree that, during said three billing cycle period, they will cooperate to resolive amounts in dispute or billing process issues in a timely manner but. no later than sixty (60) days after the bill date of USWC's invoice or identification and notice of the billing process issue. Disputed amounts will be paid within thirty (30) days following resolution of the dispute.

- 2. After the three (3) month period outlined in Section C.1 above, the Reseller will pay the bill in full within 30 days after the bill date of the invoice. Billing disputes will be processed and jointly resolved. Any disputed amounts that USWC remits to the Reseller will be credited on the next billing cycle including an interest credit of 1.5% per month compounded.
- 3 A late payment charge of 1.5% applies to all billied balances which are not paid by 30 days after the bill date shown on the invoice. USWC agrees, however, that the application of this provision will be suspended for the initial three billing cycles of this Agreement and will not apply to amounts billed during those three cycles.
- 4 USWC may discontinue processing orders for the failure by Reseller to make full payment for the resold services provided under this Agreement within thirty (30) days of the due due on Reseller's bill. USWC agrees, however, that the application of this provision will be suspended for the initial three billing cycles of this Agreement and will not apply to amounts billed during those three cycles.
- 5. USWC may disconnect for the failure by Reseller to make full payment for the resold services provided under this Agreement within say; (60) days of the due date on Reseller's bill. Reseller will pay the tariff charge required to reconnect each end user line disconnected pursuant to this paragraph USWC agrees, however, that the application of this provision will be suspended for the first three billing cycles under this Agreement and will not apply to amounts billed during those three cycles.

If USWC elects to disconnect Reseller pursuant to this paragraph, USWC will notify Reseller of such disconnection ten (10) days prior to the effective date of the disconnection. Immediately upon receipt of such notice, Reseller shall notify its end user customers that service will be disconnected on the date specified in USWCs notice to Reseller for Resellers failure to make payments due hereunder. Reseller shall not disparage USWC or make otherwise false or misleading statements about USWC or the disconnection in Reseller's notice to its end user customers. USWC will not disconnect an end user customer without first obtaining the approval of the Commission.

- Collection procedures and the requirements for deposit are unaffected by the application of a late payment charge.
- 7 USWC shall credit Reseller's account the amount due for any trouble or out-of-service conditions in the same manner that USWC credits the accounts of its own end-user and pursuant to any applicable provisions in USWC's tariffs. USWC shall reflect the amount of such credits on an individual end user telephone number basis in the billing information USWC provides Reseller.

8 In the event billing disputes relate to service quality issues, the dispute shall be referred to the USWC account executive assigned to Reseller who will evaluate the facts and circumstances of the service quality issues and will work with Reseller to resolve the dispute

D. Deposit

- USWC may require. Reseller to make a suitable deposit to be held by USWC as a guarantee of the payment of charges. Any deposit required of an existing reseller is due and payable within ten days after the requirement is imposed. The amount of the deposit shall be the estimated charges for the resold Service which will accrue for a two-month period.
- 2. When the service is terminated, or when Reseller has established satisfactory credit, the amount of the initial or additional deposit, with any interest due as set forth in applicable tariffs, will, at Reseller's option, either be credited to Reseller's account or refunded. Satisfactory credit for a reseller is defined as twelve consecutive months service as a reseller without a termination for nonpayment and with no more than one notification of intent to terminate Service for nonpayment. Interest on the deposit shall be accumulated by USWC at a rate equal to the federal discount rate as published in the Wall Street Journal.

E. Taxes

Each party purchasing services hereunder shall pay or otherwise be responsible for all federal, state, or local sales, use, excise, gross receipts, transaction or similar taxes, fees or surcharges levied against or upon such purchasing Party (or the providing Party with taxes, fees or surcharges), except for any tax on either Party s corporate existence, status or income. Whenever possible, these amounts shall be billed as a separate item on the invoice. To the extent a sale is claimed to be for resale tax exemption, the purchasing Party shall furnish the providing Party a proper resale tax exemption certificate as authorized or required by statute or regulation by the jurisdiction providing said resale tax exemption. Failure to timely provide said resale tax exemption certificate will result in no exemption being available to the purchasing Party.

F. Force Majeure.

Neither Party shall be responsible for delays or failures in performance resulting from acts or occurrences beyond the reasonable control of such Party, regardless of whether such delays or failures in performance were foreseen or foreseeable as of the date of this Agreement, including, without limitation, fire, explosion, power failure acts of 50 Go, war, revolution, civil commotion, or acts of public enemies; any law order, regulation, ordinance or requirement of any government or legal body; or labor unrest including, without limitation, strikes, slowdowns, picketing or boycotts or delays caused by the other Party or by other service or equipment vendors or any other circumstances beyond the Party's reasonable control. In such event, the Party affected shall, upon giving prompt notice to the other Party, be excused from such performance on a day-for-day basis to the extent of such interference (and the other Party shall likewise be excused from performance of its obligations on a day-for-day basis to the extent of such interference (and the other Party shall like its best efforts to the performance os interfered with). The affected Party shall use its best efforts to

avoid or remove the cause of non-performance and both parties shall proceed to perform with dispatch once the causes are removed or cease.

G Responsibility of Each Party

Each Party is an independent contractor, and has and hereby retains the right to exercise full control of and supervision over its own performance of its obligations under this Agreement and retains full control over the employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all employees assisting in the performance of such obligations. Each Party will be solely responsible for all matters relating to payment of such employees, including compliance with social security taxes, withholding taxes and all other regulations governing such matters. Each Party will be solely responsible for proper handling, storage, transport and disposal at its own expense of all (i) substances or materials that it or its contractors or agents bring to, create or assume control over at work locations or, (ii) waste resulting therefrom or otherwise generated in connection with its or its contractors' or agents' activities at the work locations. Subject to the limitations on liability and except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, each Party shall be responsible for (i) its own acts and performance of all obligations imposed by applicable law in connection with its activities, legal status and property, real or personal and, (ii) the acts of its own affiliates, employees, agents and contractors during the performance of that Party's obligations hereunder.

H. Limitation of Liability

Except for indemnity obligations, each Party's liability to the other Party for any loss relating to or anising out of any negligent act or omission in its performance of this Agreement, whether in contract or in tort, shall be limited to the total amount that is or would have been charged to the other Party by such negligent or breaching Party for the service(s) or function(s) not performed or improperly party for the service(s).

Neither Party shall be liable to the other under this Agreement for indirect, incidental, consequential, or special damages, including (without limitation) damages for lost profits, lost revenues, lost savings suffered by the other Party regardless of the form of action, whether in contract, warranty, strict liability, tort, including (without limitation) regigience of any kind and regardless of whether the Parties know the possibility that such damages could result.

Nothing contained in this Section shall limit either Party's liability to the other for intentional, malicious misconduct.

Indemnification.

With respect to third party claims, each of the Parties agrees to release, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the other Party and each of its officers, directors, employees and agents (each an 'Indemnitee') from and against and in respect of any loss debt, liability, damage, obligation, claim, demand, judgment or settlement of any nature or kind, known or unknown, liquidated or unliquidated including, but not limited to, costs and attorneys fees, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any other party or person, for invasion of privacy, personal injury to or death of any person or persons, or for loss, damage to, or destruction of property, whether or not owned by others, resulting from the indemnifying Party's performance, breach of applicable law or status of its employees agents and

subcontractors, or for failure to perform under this Agreement, regardless of the form of action.

- The indemnification provided herein shall be conditioned upon.
 - a. The indemnified Party shall promptly notify the indemnifying Party of any action taken against the indemnified Party relating to the indemnification. Failure to so notify the Indemnifying Party shall not relieve the Indemnifying Party of any liability that the Indemnifying Party might have, except to the extent that such failure prejudices the indemnifying Party's ability to defend such claim.
 - b. The indemnifying Party shall have sole authority to defend any such action, including the selection of legal counsel, and the indemnified Party may engage separate legal counsel only at its sole cost and expense.
 - In no event shall the indemnifying Party settle or consent to any judgment perfaining to any such action without the prior written consent of the indemnified Party.

J. Intellectual Property

- Each Party hereby grants to the other Party the limited, personal and nonexclusive right and license to use its patents, copyrights and trade secrets but only to the extent necessary to implement this Agreement or specifically required by the then applicable federal and state rules and regulations relating to Resale and access to telecommunications facilities and services, and for no other purposes. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as the grant to the other Party of any rights or licenses to trademarks.
- 2. The rights and licenses above are granted "AS IS" and the other Party's exercise of any such right and license shall be at the sole and exclusive risk of the other Party. Neither Party shall have any obligation to defend, indemnify or hold harmless, or acquire any license or right for the benefit of, or owe any other obligation or have any liability to, the other based on or arising from any claim demand, or proceeding (hereinafter "claim") by any third party alleging or asserting that the use of any circuit, apparatus, or system, or the use of any software, or the performance of any service or method, or the provision of any facilities by either Party under this Agreement constitutes infringement, or misuse or misappropriation of any patent, copyright, trade secret, or any other proprietary or intellectual property right of any third party.
- 3 As a condition to the access or use of patents, copyrights, trade secrets and other intellectual property (including software) owned or controlled by a third party to the extent necessary to implement this. Agreement or specifically required by the then applicable federal and state rules and regulations relating to resale and access to telecommunications facilities and services, the Party providing access may require the other upon written notice, from time to time, to obtain a license or permission for such access or use, make all payments in connection with obtaining such license, and provide evidence of such license.

- 4. Except as expressly provided in this Intellectual Property Section, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as the grant of a license, either express or implied, with respect to any patent, copyright, logo, trademark, tradename, trade secret or any other intellectual property right now or hereafter owned, controlled or licensable by either Party. Reseller may not use any patent, copyright, logo, trademark, tradename, trade secret or other intellectual property right of USWC or its affiliates without execution of a separate agreement between the Parties.
- Reseller shall not, without the express written permission of USWC, state or imply that: 1) Reseller is connected, or in any way affiliates of VD. Reseller is part of a joint business association or any similar arrangement with USWC or its affiliates or: 3) USWC and its affiliates are in any way sponsoring, endorsing or certifying Reseller and its goods and services or. 4) with respect to Reseller advertising or promotional activities or materials, that the resoid goods and services are in any way associated with or originated from USWC or any of its affiliates. Notwithstanding the above, Reseller may state in response to a specific end user inquiry concerning the origin of the resold services that 'Reseller is reselling USWC services.' No other statements may be made.
- Notwithstanding the above, unless otherwise prohibited by USWC pursuant to an applicable provision herein, Reseller may use the phrase "(Name of Reseller) is a reseller of U.S. WEST Communications services" (the "Authorized Phrase") in Reseller's printed materials provided.
 - The Authorized Phrase is not used in connection with any goods or services other than USWC services resold by Reseller
 - Reseller's use of the Authorized Phrase does not, in USWC's sole discretion, cause end users to believe that Reseller is USWC.
 - c) The Authorized Phrase, when displayed, appears only in text form (Reseller may not use the U.S.WEST logo) with all letters being the same font and point size. The point size of the Authorized Phrase shall be no greater than one fourth the point size of the smallest use of Reseller's name and in no event shall exceed 8 point size.
 - Reseller shall provide all printed materials to USWC for its prior written approval.
 - If USWC determines that Reseller's use of the Authorized Phrase causes end user confusion. USWC may in its sole discretion, immediately terminate Reseller's right to use the Authorized Phrase.
 - f) Upon termination of the Reselier's right to use the Authorized Phrase or termination of this Agreement, all permission or right to use the Authorized Phrase shall immediately cease to exist and Reselier shall immediately cease any and all such use of the Authorized Phrase. Reseller shall either promptly return to USWC or destroy all materials in its possession or control displaying the Authorized Phrase.
- Reseller acknowledges the value of the marks "U S WEST" and "U S WEST Communications" (the "Marks") and the goodwill associated therewith and acknowledges that such goodwill is a properly right

belonging to U.S. WEST Inc. and USWC respectively (the "Owners"). Reseller recognizes that nothing contained in this Agreement is intended as an assignment or grant to Reseller of any right, title or interest in or to the Marks and that this Agreement does not confer any right or license to grant sublicenses or permission to third parties to use the Marks and is not assignable. Reseller will do nothing inconsistent with the Owners' ownership of the Marks, and all nights, if any, that may be acquired by use of the Marks shall injure to the benefit of the Owners. Reseller will not adopt, use (other than as authorized in Section 3 herein), register or seek to register any mark anywhere in the world which is identical or confusingly similar to the Marks or which is so similar thereto as to constitute a deceptive colorable imitation thereof or to suggest or imply some association, sponsorship, or endorsement by the Owners. The Owners make no warranties regarding its ownership of any rights in or the validity of the Marks.

K. Warranties

NOTWITHSTANDING ANY OTHER PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT. THE PARTIES AGREE THAT NEITHER PARTY HAS MADE. AND THAT THERE DOES NOT EXIST, ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

L. Assignment

Neither Party may assign or transfer (whether by operation of law or otherwise) this Agreement (or any rights or obligations hereunder) to a third party without the prior written consent of the other Party provided that each Party may assign this Agreement to a corporate affiliate or an entity under its common control or an entity acquiring all or substantially all of its assets or equity by providing prior written notice to the other Party of such assignment or transfer. Any attempted assignment or transfer that is not permitted is void ab initio. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties respective successors and assigns.

M. Default

If either Party defaults in the payment of any amount due hereunder, or if either Party violates any other provision of this Agreement, and such default or violation shall continue for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof, the other Party may seek legal and/or regulatory relief. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement or the waver thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of any such provision, but the same shall in evertheless be and remain in full force and effect.

N Severability

In accordance with this Agreement, if one or more of the provisions contained herein must be modified because of changes in Existing Rules or modifications to arbitration proceedings. the Parties will negotiate in good faith for replacement language. If replacement language cannot be agreed upon, either Party may seek regulatory intervention, including negotiations pursuant to Sections 251 and 252 of the Act. In all other respects, the provisions of this Agreement are not severable.

O. Nondisclosure

- All information including, but not limited to, specifications, microfilm, photocopies, magnetic disks, magnetic tapes, drawings, sketches, models, samples, tools, technical information, data, employee records, maps, financial reports, and market data. (i) furnished by one Party to the other Party dealing with end user specific, facility specific, or usage specific information other than end user information communicated for the purpose of publication of directory database inclusion, or (ii) in written, graphic, electromagnetic, or other tangible form and marked at the time of delivery as "Confidential", "Proprietary", or (iii) communicated and declared to the receiving Party at the time of delivery, or by written notice given to the receiving Party within ten (10) days after delivery, to be "Confidential" or "Proprietary" (collectively referred to as "Proprietary Information"), shall remain the property of the disclosing Party. A Party who receives Proprietary Information via an oral communication may request written confirmation that the material is Proprietary Information. A Party who delivers Proprietary Information via an oral communication may request written confirmation that the Party receiving the information understands that the material is Proprietary Information.
- Upon request by the disclosing Party, the receiving Party shall return all tangble copies of Proprietary Information, whether written, graphic or otherwise, except that the receiving Party may retain one copy for archival purposes
- 3 Each Party shall keep all of the other Party's Proprietary Information confidential and shall use the other Party's Proprietary Information only in connection with this Agreement. Neither Party shall use the other Party's Proprietary Information for any other purpose except upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon between the Parties in without and parties of the parties of th
- 4 Unless otherwise agreed, the obligations of confidentiality and non-use set forth in this Agreement do not apply to the extent that such Proprietary Information:
 - was at the time of receipt already known to the receiving Party free of any obligation to keep it confidential (evidenced by written records prepared prior to delivery by the disclosing Party); or
 - is or becomes publicly known through no wrongful act of the receiving Party; or
 - is rightfully received from a third person having no direct or indirect secrecy or confidentiality obligation to the disclosing Party with respect to such information, or
 - d is independently developed by an employee, agent, or contractor of the receiving Party which individual is not involved in any manner with the provision of services pursuant to the Agreement and does not have any direct or indirect access to the Proprietary Information, or
 - is disclosed to a third person by the disclosing Party without restrictions on such third person's rights, or

- f. is approved for release by written authorization of the disclosing Party or
- g is required to be made public by the receiving Party pursuant to applicable law or regulation provided that the receiving Party shall give sufficient notice of the requirement to the disclosing Party to enable the disclosing Party to seek protective orders where possible.
- h. Effective Date Of This Section. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the Proprietary Information provisions of this Agreement shall apply to all information furnished by either Party to the other in furtherance of the purpose of this Agreement, even if furnished before the date of this Agreement.

P Survival

The Parties' obligations under this Agreement which by their nature are intended to continue beyond the termination or expiration of this Agreement shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Q. Dispute Resolution

If any claim. controversy or dispute between the Parties, their agents, employees, officers, directors or affiliated agents ("Dispute") cannot be settled through negotiation, it shall be resolved by arbitration conducted by a single arbitrator engaged in the practice of law, under the their current rules of the American Arbitration Association ("AAA"). The Federal Arbitration Act, 9 U SC. Secs. 1-16, not state law, shall govern the arbitrability of all Disputes. The arbitrator shall not have authority to award punitive damages. All expedited procedures prescribed by the AAA rules shall apply. The arbitrator's award shall be final and binding and may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof. The prevailing Party, as determined by the arbitrator, shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorneys' fees and costs. The arbitration shall occur in Denver. Colorado. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to waive or limit either Party sight to seek relief from the Commission or the Federal Communications Commission as provided by state or federal law.

No Dispute, regardless of the form of action, arising out of this Agreement, may be brought by either Party more than two (2) years after the cause of action accrues.

R. Controlling Law

This Agreement was negotiated by the Parties in accordance with the terms of the Act and the laws of South Dakota. It shall be interpreted solely in accordance with the terms of the Act, where applicable, and the laws of the state of South Dakota and shall be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts in that state, unless otherwise provided by the Act.

S Joint Work Product

This Agreement is the joint work product of the Parties and has been negotiated by the Parties and their respective counsel and shall be fairly interpreted in accordance with its terms and, in the event of any ambiguities, no inferences shall be drawn against either Party.

T. Notices

Any notices required by or concerning this Agreement shall be sent to the Parties at the addresses shown below:

U.S. WEST Communications, Inc.

Lori Simpson Director-Interconnection Compliance 6830 Walling Lane 150 South 5th Street

Room 2800 Minneapolis Minnesota 55402

612-663-3425 (phone) 612-663-3551 (fax)

Comm South Companies, Inc. Jim H. Graham

Dallas Texas 75231

972-690-9955 (phone)

Each Party shall inform the other of any changes in the above addresses.

U. No Third-Party Beneficiaries.

Except as may be specifically set forth in this Agreement, this Agreement does not provide and shall not be construed to provide third parties with any remedy, claim, liability, reimbursement, cause of action, or other privilege.

V. Publicity and Advertising.

Neither party shall publish or use any advertising, sales promotions or other publicity materials that use the other party's name, logo, trademarks or service marks without the prior written approval of the other party.

W. Amendment

Reseller and USWC may mutually agree to amend this Agreement in writing. Since it is possible that amendments to this Agreement may be needed to fully satisfy the purposes and objectives of this Agreement, the Parties agree to work cooperatively, promptly and in good faith to negotiate and implement any such additions, changes and corrections to this Agreement.

X. Executed in Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original; but such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same instrument

Y. Headings of No Force or Effect

The headings of Sections of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only. and shall in no way define, modify or restrict the meaning or interpretation of the terms or provisions of this Agreement.

Z. Cooperation

The Parties agree that this Agreement involves the provision of USWC services in ways such services were not previously available and the introduction of new processes and procedures to provide and bill such services. Accordingly, the Parties agree to work jointly and cooperatively in testing and implementing processes for pre-ordering, ordering, maintenance, provisioning and billing and in reasonably resolving issues which result from such implementation on a timely basis

AA. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements, representations, statements, negotiations, understandings, proposals and understandings with respect to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement shall prevail in the event of any conflict between the "Resale Resource Guide" and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective duly authorized representatives.

Comm South Companies, Inc.	Kall L. Th		
Signature	Signature)		
Jim H. Graham	Katherine L. Fleming		
Name Printed/Typed	Name Printed/Typed		
1 Regident	Executive Director-Interconnection		
Title	Title		
3 25 48	4/03/98		
Date	Date		

Signature does not waive any rights of either Party to seek administrative/judicial review of all or part of this Agreement or to reform this Agreement as a result of successful administrative/judicial review and/or future settlement agreements between the Parties to this Agreement.

APPENDIX A - South Dakota LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICES RESALE OF SERVICES

The Parties agree the following charges apply to the Resale of Local Services.

- 1. Nonrecurring Charges.
 - a. Customer Transfer Charge (CTC): The following nonrecurring charges apply when converting a USWC account to a Reseller account or when changing an end user from one reseller to another.

Mediated access (OSS) USCC	Nonrecurring Charge
Residence	
First Line	\$12.64
Each Additional Line	\$11.16
Business	
First Line	\$16.80
Each Additional Line	\$13.93
Non-Mediated Access (Manual)	
Residence and Business	
First Line	\$22.20
Each Additional Line	\$16.38

- b. Product Specific Nonrecurring Charge: As set forth in USWC tariffs, the product specific nonrecurring charges, without discount, will apply when additional lines or trunks are added or when the end user adds features or services to existing lines or trunks
- 2. The following USWC services are available for resale at the rates listed below

C	ategory:	Discount Rate
	Basic Exchange Business, PBX Trunks	12%
	ISDN, Frame Relay	12%
	Listings, CO Features	12%

IntraLATA toll is available for resale at the contract toll rates listed below without application of a further wholesale discount:

State:	Rate Per Minute of Use
South Dakota	10

- 3. The following services are available for resale under this Agreement but are not included in the wholesale pricing reflected above unless and until the state public utilities Commission in a particular state orders that wholesale discount rates are generally available to resellers with respect to these products in that state:
 - Basic Exchange Residence
- Centrex

Private Line

Public Access Lines

- Volume Discount and/or Term Arrangement (where contained in end user contracts or USWC
- 4. The following service is available for resale under this Agreement but is not included in the wholesale pricing reflected above:
 - Special Access

- 5. The following services are not available for resale:
 - Lifeline · Concession Service
- USWC Calling Cards
- Technical Trials

 Enhanced Services (e.g., Voice Messaging) · Promotions equal to or less than 90 days in length
- . Inside wiring installation and maintenance (including maintenance plans)
- · Grandfathered Products and Services (except to end users currently served with such services)
- · Customer premises equipment (separately or when included in packages)

APPENDIX B DIRECTORY LISTINGS

1 Scope

- a Reseller White Pages Listing Service ("Listings") consists of USWC placing the names addresses and telephone numbers of Reseller's end users in USWC's listing database, based on end user information provided to USWC by Reseller. USWC is authorized to use Listings in Directory Assistance (DA) and as noted in 1.D i or 1.D ii.
- b. Reseller will provide in standard, format, and USWC will accept at no charge, one primary listing for each main telephone number belonging to Reseller's end users. Primary listings are as defined for USWC end users in USWC's general exchange tanffes, Reseller will be charged for privacy listings and premium listings, e.g., additional, foreign, cross reference, informational, etc., at USWC's general exchange listing tariff rates minus the applicable standard resale discount in each state.
- USWC will furnish Reseller the Listings format specifications. USWC cannot accept Listings with advance completion dates.
- d Reseller grants USWC a non-exclusive license to incorporate Listings information into its directory assistance database. Reseller hereby selects one of two options for USWC's use of Listings and dissemination of Listings to third parties.

EITHER

- Treat the same as USWC's end user listings No prior authorization is needed for USWC to release Listings to directory publishers or other third parties. USWC will incorporate Listings information in all existing and future directory assistance applications developed by USWC. Reseller will authorize USWC to sell and otherwise make Listings available to directory publishers including USWC's publisher affiliate for inclusion in white pages published on USWC's behalf. USWC shall be entitled to retain all revenue associated with any such sales Listings shall not be provided or sold in such a manner as to segregate end users by carrier. OR
- ii Restrict to USWC's directory assistance Prior authorization required by Reseller for all other uses. Reseller makes its own, separate agreements with USWC, third parties and directory publishers for all uses of its listings beyond DA. USWC will self Listings to directory publishers (including USWC's publisher affiliate for inclusion in white pages published on USWC's behalf), other third parties and USWC products only after third party presents proof of Reseller's authorization. USWC shall be entitled to retain all revenue associated with any such sales. Listings shall not be provided or sold in such a manner as to segregate end users by carrier.

Reseller hereby selects Option: i or ii

- To the extent that state tariffs limit USWC's liability with regard to Listings: the applicable state tariffs) is incorporated herein and supersedes Section VII.G., "Limitation of Liability", of this Agreement with respect to Listings only.
- 2. USWC Responsibilities

USWC is responsible for maintaining Listings, including entering, changing, correcting rearranging and removing Listings in accordance with Reseller orders. USWC will take

reasonable steps in accordance with industry practices to accommodate non-published and nonlisted listings provided that Reseller has supplied USWC the necessary privacy indicators on such Listings.

USWC will include Reseller's Listings in USWC's Directory Assistance service to ensure that callers to USWC's Directory Assistance service have non-discriminatory access to Reseller's Listings.

USWC will incorporate Reseller's Listings provided to USWC in the white pages directory published on USWC's behalf, in accordance with Reseller's selection under Section 1.d. above.

- 3. Reseller Responsibilities.
- Reseller agrees to provide to USWC its end user names, addresses and telephone numbers in a standard format, as specified by USWC.
- Reseller will supply its ACNA/CIC or CLCC/OCN, as appropriate, with each order to provide USWC the means of identifying Listings ownership.
- c. Reseller represents and warrants the end user information provided to USWC is accurate and correct. Reseller further represents and warrants that it has reviewed all Listings provided to USWC. Including end user requested restrictions on use such as non-published and non-listed. Reseller shall be solely responsible for knowing and adhering to state laws or rulings regarding Listings (e.g., no solicitation requirements in the states of Arizona and Oregon, privacy requirements in Colorado), and for supplying USWC the applicable Listing information.
- d. Reseller is responsible for all dealings with and on behalf of Reseller's end users, including:
- All end user account activity, e.g., end user gueries and complaints.
- ii. All account maintenance activity, e.g., additions, changes, issuance of orders for Listings to USWC
- Determining privacy requirements and accurately coding the privacy indicators for Reseller's end user information. If end user information provided by Reseller to USWC does not contain a privacy indicator, no privacy restrictions will apply.
- iv. Any additional services requested by Reseller's end users.

APPENDIX C ACCESS TO OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEMS (OSS)

USWC is developing a proposal for access to its Operational Support Systems (OSS) to meet the requirements of the FCC's 1st and 2nd Orders and to provide Reseller with electronic interfaces for pre-ordering, ordering, demand repairs and billing functions for Plain Old Telephone Services (POTS). These interfaces will also have the necessary mediation to protect the integrity of the network as well as allay any privacy concerns for end user information. The components described in this section are conceptual in nature and will be subject to change as the implementation process proceeds. There will be charges associated with the introduction of the interface and ongoing access to OSS operations which will include an initial access fee and an ongoing charge as described more fully below.

C.1 Operational Systems Interfaces - Interface Implementation Timetable

USWC's initial operational systems interfaces have been deployed and will support Preordering, Ordering, Provisioning and Repair capabilities for POTS (non-design) services and Billing capabilities for most USWC product offerings. Subsequent phases of the plan incorporate the capabilities to support designed services for Pre-ordering, Ordering, Provisioning, and Maintenance and Repair. The specific features and functions are not discussed in this Agreement.

C.2 OSS Interface Design

- C.2.1 USWC will develop OSS interfaces using an electronic gateway solution consistent with the design prescribed by the FCC. Docket 95-98. FCC 96-325, paragraph 527. These gateways will act as a mediation or control point between Reseller's and USWC's Operations Systems. Additionally, these gateways will provide security for the interface, protecting the integrity of the USWC network and its databases.
- C.2.2 USWC proposes the use of the existing Electronic Data Interchange (EDI) standard for the transmission of monthly local billing information. EDI is a established standard under the auspices of the American National Standards Institute/Accredited Standards Committee (ANSI/ASC) X12 Committee A proper subset of this specification has been adopted by the Telecommunications Industry Forum (TCIF) as the "811 Guidelines" specifically for the purposes of telecommunications billing.
- C 2.3 For the exchange of daily usage data, including third party billed, collect, and card calls. USVIC will use the Bellicore EMR format for the records, using the Network Data Mover ("NDM"), otherwise also known as the Connect Direct method to transmit the information to carriers.

C.3 Accessible OSS Functions

C.3.1 Pre-ordering

'Pre-Ordering' refers to the set of activities whereby a service representative dialogs with Reseller in order to obtain service availability. In today's environment, the pre-order process is performed in conjunction with placing an order. Packaged as a separate activity, pre-order consists of the following functions: verify an address, check service availability, and return end user service information. USWC will provide on-line capabilities to perform these functions. These functions are described as follows:

C.3.1.1 Address Verification

This transaction will verify the end user's address

If the address does not match USWC records, the AVR transaction will return 'partial match' addresses and/or help as appropriate to assist Reseller to properly identify the end user's address for verification.

Once the address is verified, the AVR transaction will return the valid address and the current status (working, non-working, or pending out) and the date the status was posted for each line at the address.

If USWC does not have a record of the address, Reseller will have to contact USWC to input the record before the order can be submitted.

Note.

- C 3.1.1.1 No detailed facility information (i.e., cable pair) will be returned as part of this transaction
- C.3.1.1.2 Rural addresses will not be supported.
- C.3.1.1.3 The AVQ/AVR transaction attributes currently don't reflect the attributes required to support the error scenarios.
- C 3.1.2 Service Availability

This transaction will return the list of products and services available for resale in the central office serving a particular end user address. The USWC rates for the products and services will also be returned, but the Reseller discount will not be applied.

C.3.1.3 End User Service Information Request

Gives Reseller the ability to request a listing of services and features USWC is currently providing to an end user and the rates USWC is charging for such spaging.

C.3.1.4 View/Update Service Query/Service Request Response

Gives Reseller the ability to view or update an existing Service Request (SR).

C.3.1.5 Store Service Request

This transaction allows an Reseller user to store a new or existing SR

This SR can be stored for the number of days specified in USWC's methods and procedures before the SR must be submitted to USWC as a Work Order. USWC will store the SR on-line until the associated Work Order is canceled by Reseller or completed by USWC.

C.3.2 Ordering

With the pre-ordering steps completed, the requisite information will have been obtained from Reselier and the initiation of a service order can begin. Submitting a service order will result in the provisioning and installation, if necessary, of an end user's service. The functional set required to order service is open a service order, check facility availability, reserve an appointment if technician work is required in the field or at the end user's premises, reserve a telephone number if appropriate, cancel a service order, change a service order, send a firm order confirmation support for work order status queries, and send notification of order completion.

C 3 2 1 Facility Availability

For each new line requested, this transaction will indicate if existing facilities are available or if new facilities are required, and if a technician must be dispatched to provide the facilities requested at the end user's address.

This transaction must be executed for any new line(s) requested

Note

- C.3.2.1.1 This transaction does not reserve facilities and does not guarantee that facilities will be available when the work order is submitted.
- C 3 2.1 2 USWC will automatically execute this transaction as part of order processing, any time a new line or transfer line is requested.

C 3 2 2 Telephone Number Availability

Enables a telephone number (TN) to be assigned to a line. Reseller will be able to accept the TN or exchange the TN for two other TNs. If the end user requests a specific number or a vanity number. Reseller must call the USWC Number Assignment Center (NAC) and the request will be handled manually. Reseller will not have direct access to the telephone number assignment system.

C.3.2.3 Exchange Telephone Numbers/Response

Enables Reseller to exchange the TN returned by the Telephone Number Availability Transaction for two more TNs. Reseller must select one of the three TNs to proceed with the Work Order.

C.3.2.4 Return Telephone Numbers

Enables Reseller to reject the TNs returned by the Telephone Number Availability transaction and the TNs will be returned to the pool.

C.3.2.5 Telephone Number Accept

Allows Reseller to reserve one telephone number returned by the Telephone Number Availability transaction for a period of one (1) day so that the end user can be informed of the TN(s) prior to the actual submission of a Work Order. The Work Order must be submitted before the TN expires, otherwise the TN will be returned to the available pol of TNs.

C.3.2.6 Appointment Availability

Allows Reseller to select an appointment from a calendar of available appointments. Reseller will not have direct access to the system but USWC will automatically execute this transaction after the Work Order has been submitted and a technician must be dispatched.

C 3.2.7 Appointment Reservation

Enables Reseller to reserve an available appointment after the appointment availability calendar has been returned to Reseller by USWC. USWC will return a confirmation number.

C.3.2.8 Work Order/Firm Order Completion

The work order provides the information and actions required for USWC to provision products, services and features. This transaction will also be used to cancel and change existing work orders. The information contained in a work order identifies Reseller, the end user desired due date, the service

being requested, the order type (only change and migration to Reseller), POA (Proof of Authorization), class of service, telephone number and additional information needed to successfully provision the requested service to the end user.

Once a work order is accepted by USWC, the assigned service order number will be returned to Reseller. This may not happen in real time. Reseller of then use the service order number to status the work order. Firm Order Confirmation means that USWC has received the order and assigned an order number for tracking. It does not mean that edits have been applied, so errors may still exist on the order.

C 3.2.9 Status Query/Response

This transaction will allow Reseller to obtain the status of a work order. USWC will return the current status, remarks and due date for specified work order.

Note: This status request is issued by Reseller on demand. Real Time Order Completion and Jeopardy Notification is not proactively issued by USWC.

C.3.2.10 Order Completion Report

Provides Reseller with a daily (Monday - Saturday) report, electronically, that identifies all work orders that were completed by USWC on that date. This report is called the Co-Provider Completion Report.

C 3 3 Repair

Repair functions allow Reseller to report trouble with communications circuits and services provided by USWC. The functions, processes and systems used in repair are based on a Trouble Report (TR), which is an electronic document maintained in one or more Operations Systems. A TR contains information about the end user, the trouble, the status of the work on the trouble and the results of the investigation and resolution efforts. These business processes have been summarized and will be made available to Reseller in the following functional set: open a trouble report, cancel a trouble report send notification of status change and close a trouble report.

C 3.3.1 Verify Request

This transaction will be used to verify vertical features the end user currently owns. Technical discussions (e.g., Security) are currently ongoing within USWC as to how to provide this capability.

C.3.3.2 Open Trouble Report

Gives Reseller the capability to open a TR with USWC

C.3.3.3 Open Trouble Report Response

Gives Reseller the capability to the Open TR request and contains information about the TR that Reseller needs to track or to convey to Reseller's end user.

C 3.3.4 Completion Notification

Provides notification to Reseller that a TR has been closed because the trouble was resolved.

C 3.3.5 Cancel Trouble Report Instruction

Allows Reseller to cancel a previous opened TR

C.3.3.6 Status Change Notification

Provides Notification to Reseller that the status of a previously opened TR has changed.

C.4 Billing Interfaces

USWC offers interfaces for the exchange of several types of billing data:

- · Monthly Billing Information.
- · Daily Usage Data.
- Local Account Maintenance Report.
- Centralized Message Distribution System (CMDS) messages.
- Routing of in-region intraLATA collect, calling card, and third number billed messages.

C.4.1 Monthly Billing Information

Includes all connectivity charges, credits, and adjustments related to network elements and USWC-provided local service.

C.4.2 Daily Usage Data

The accumulated set of call information for a given day as captured, or recorded, by the network switches. USWC will provide this data to Reseller with the same level of precision and accuracy it provides itself. Such precision cannot and will not exceed the current capabilities of the software in the switches today.

C.4.3 Local Account Maintenance Report

The list of phone numbers to which the carrier is no longer providing service since the last report.

- C.4.4 Centralized Message Distribution System ("CMDS")
 - Distribution of CMDS messages for Reseller end users.

C.4.5 Routing of In-region IntraLATA Collect, Calling Card, and Third Number Billed Messages

USWC will distribute in-region intraLATA collect, calling card, and third number billed messages to Reseller and exchange with other Co-Providers operating in region in a manner consistent with existing inter-company processing agreements. Whenever the daily usage information is transmitted to a carrier, it will contain the records for these types of calls as well.

C.5 Compensation

C.5.1 Compensation for OSS access will consist of an initial access fee which will be determined based on the specific access engineered and implemented for Reseller and is a function of the numbers of Reseller business office and repair service representatives accessing the system. The fee will include costs for hardware (if purchased through USWC), software (which must be purchased through USWC). It becommunications links and labor incurred to establish the interfaces to USWC's OSS for Reseller. The costs will be substantiated by purchasing invoices for the communications and computing hardware and software, and by time reports for the labor expended in their design and software.

implementation. Labor will be billed at the prevailing rates for contract labor for similar services.

C.5.2 The ongoing charge will be billed at a rate to be specified by the Commission at the completion of an appropriate cost study hearing.



14

4 CH . 17 4.

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

State Capitol Building, 500 East Capitol Avenue, Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070



Capitol Office Telephone (605)773-3201 FAX (605)773-3809

Transportation/ Warehouse Division Telephone (605)773-5280 FAX (605)773-3225

Consumer Hotlin 1-806-332-1782

TTY Through Relay South Dakota 1-800-877-1113

Internet billb@puc.state.sd.us

Jim Burg Chairman Pam Nelson Vice-Chairman Laska Schoenfelder Commissioner

William Bullard Ir Executive Director Edward R. Anderson Harlan Best

Martin C. Bettmann Charlie Boile Sue Cichos Karen E. Cremer Marlette Fischbach Shirleen Fugit Lewis Hammond Katie Hartford Leni Healy Carron Hoseck

Dave Jacobson Bob Knadle Delaine Kolbo Jeffrey P Lorensen Terry Norum Gregory A Rishiw Tammi Stangohr Steven M Wegman Rolayne Ailts Wiest Mr. Jim H. Graham President Comm South Companies, Inc. 6830 Walling Lane Dallas, TX 75231

Re Agreement for Service Resale between Comm South Companies, Inc., and U S WEST Communications, Inc. Docket TC98-100

Dear Mr. Graham:

May 19, 1998

The South Dakota Public Utilities Commission is in receipt of an Agreement for Service Resale between Comm South Companies, Inc., and U. S. WEST Communications, Inc. We cannot find where Comm South Companies, Inc., is authorized by reason of a Certificate of Authority to be engaged in the telecommunications business in South Dakota. Perhaps there is some error or your company is certified in South Dakota under another name. Could you please clarify this for me.

Are Comm South Companies, Inc., presently engaged in the telecommunications business in South Dakota?

Please respond at your earliest convenience so that this Agreement can be given full consideration. Thank you.

Very truly yours,

Camron Hoseck Staff Attorney

CH dk

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission State Capitol 500 E. Capitol Pierre, SD 57501-5070 Phone: (605) 773-3705 Fax: (605) 773-3809

TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE FILINGS

$\frac{05/15/98\ through\ 05/21/98}{\text{If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overlight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo within five days of this filing.}$

DOCKET NUMBER	TITLE/STAFF/SYNOPSIS	DATE FILED	INTERVENTION DEADLINE
	NEGOTIATED INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT FILED		
TC98-100	U.S.WEST Communications filed for approval by the Commission the negotiated Agreement for Service Resale between U.S.WEST Communications, Inc. and Comm South Companies, Inc. Any person wishing to comment on the parties' request for approval may do so by filing written comments with the Commission and the parties to the agreement no later than June 10, 1998. Parties to the agreement may file written responses to the comments no later than July 1, 1998.	05/15/98	Response Due 06/10/98
	REQUEST FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY		
TC98-101	Application by Black Hills Fiber Systems, inc. for a Certificate of Authority to operate as a telecommunications company within the state of South Dakota. (Staff: CB/EM) Black Hills Fiber Systems, inc. intends to provide a broad range of communication services consistent with the capabilities of a fiber option retwork and the needs of its sustemers. Black Hills Fiber Systems, inc. intends to construct, own, and operate a fiber optic network for retail and wholesale telecommunication purposes.	05/18/98	06/05/98

You may receive this listing and other PUC publications via our website or via internet e-mail. You may subscribe to the PUC mailing list at http://www.state.sd.us/state/executive/puc/puc.htm

FISHER WAYLAND COOPER LEADER & ZARAGOZA LLP

2001 PENNSYLVANIA AVENUE, N.W. SUITE 400

WASHINGTON, D. C. 20006-1851

JAQUALIN FRIEND PETERSON (202) 775-3534 TELEPHONE (202) 659-3494

October 23, 1998

FACSIMILE (202) 296-6518

INTERNET peterson@fwciz.com

Via Federal Express William Bullard Executive Director

RECEIVED

OCT 2 8 1998

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

500 E. Capitol State Capitol Building

State Capitol Building Pierre, South Dakota 57501

Re: Docket No. TC 98-100

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

Interconnection/Resale Agreement between Comm South Companies, Inc. and U.S. West Communications, Inc.

Dear Mr. Bullard:

We hereby request that the Application for Approval of the Interconnection/Resale Agreement between Comm South Companies, Inc. ("Comm South") and U S West Communications, Inc. ("USW") (the "Joint Application"), which was filed in the above-referenced docket, be withdrawn. Comm South has decided not to pursue certification in South Dakota at this time. Therefore, acting on the Interconnection/Resale Agreement would be premature. Comm South has contacted USW about this matter and it does not oppose the withdrawal. For these reasons, we hereby request the withdrawal of the Joint Application.

Pursuant to the Commission's filing requirements, we are enclosing an original and ten (10) copies of this letter. Please date-stamp the "Receipt" copy of this letter filing and return it in the enclosed self-addressed, stamped envelope. If you have any questions regarding this matter, please contact the undersigned.

Respectfully submitted,

Glenn S. Richards Jaqualin Friend Peterson

Enclosures

c: Jim Graham James Gallegos

P.WP51DOC/AGREEMEN/6044WDRL/SD

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

WEST COMMUNICATIONS, INC. FOR) WITHDRAWAL OF NEGOTIATED

ORDER APPROVING

LASKA SCHOENFELDER, Commissioner

IN THE MATTER OF THE FILING BY U S)

APPROVAL OF AGREEMENT	FOR) AGREEMENT AND CLOSING
SERVICE RESALE BETWEEN (SOUTH COMPANIES, INC. AND U.S.	COMM) DOCKET
COMMUNICATIONS, INC.) TC98-100
	Commission (Commission) received a request from U S for approval of the negotiated Agreement for Service
	U S WEST and Comm South Companies, Inc. (Comm
	requested that the filing be withdrawn. US WEST did
not oppose withdrawal of the filing of the Ag	greement for approval.
The Commission has jurisdiction over	r the approval of interconnection agreements pursuant
to 47 U.S.C. Section 252(e)(1) and SDCL C	Chapter 49-31-81.
On November 3, 1998, at its duly not	ticed meeting, the Commission considered the matter.
Commission Staff recommended granting the	
The Commission unanimously voted the docket. It is therefore	to permit the withdrawal of the Agreement and to close
ORDERED, that the filing of the Agree	ement for approval shall be withdrawn; and it is further
ORDERED, that this docket be close	ed.
Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this	oth day of Newsomber 1998
Dated at Fierre, South Dakota, this	4 - a day of November, 1996.
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE	BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:
The undersigned hereby certifies that this	1
document has been served today upon all parties of record in this docket, as listed on the docket service	0 116
list, by facsimile or by first class mail, in properly	Jumes U. Toura
addressed envelopes, with charges prepaid thereon.	AMES A. BURG, Chairman
a Willaime of seles	2
of the hard	Ham Helman
Date 11/10/98	DAMASICON CONTROL
1 / /	PAM NELSON, Commissioner
(OFFICIAL SEAL)	11/11/10